Registration No: 198901008551 (185853-K)

BETAMEK ELECTRONICS (M) SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 MARCH 2021



Registration No: 198901008551 (185853-K)

BETAMEK ELECTRONICS (M) SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

CONTENTS

J Corporate Information

. Directors’ Report

) Statement by Directors and Statutory Declaration

) Independent Auditors® Report

* Statements of Financial Position

. Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
. Statements of Changes in Equity

. Statements of Cash Flows

) Notes to the Financial Statements

PAGES

3-8

10-13
14-15
16
17
18 -20
21 -81



Registration No: 198901008551 (185853-K)

BETAMEK ELECTRONICS (M) SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

DIRECTORS Mirzan Bin Mahathir
Muhammad Fauzi Bin Abd Ghani (Appointed on 1
March 2021)
Ho Wai Fung (Resigned on 31 March 2021)

SECRETARIES Tai Yit Chan (Appointed on 23 September 2021)
Chan Yoke Peng (Appointed on 23 September 2021)
Kua Swee Tieng (Resigned on 23 September 2021)
Loh Wai Mun (Resigned on 23 September 2021)

AUDITORS Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT
(Member Firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd.)
Chartered Accountants
Level 11, Sheraton Imperial Court
Jalan Sultan Ismail
50250 Kuala Lumpur

REGISTERED OFFICE 12th Floor, Menara Symphony
No. 5, Jalan Prof. Khoo Kay Kim
Sekysen 13
46200 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF Lot 137, Lingkaran Taman Industri Integrasi
BUSINESS Rawang 2

Taman Industri Integrasi Rawang

48000 Rawang

Selangor Darul Ehsan



Registration No: 198901008551 (185853-K)

BETAMEK ELECTRONICS (M) SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of automotive
infotainment multimedia systems and connected mobility solutions. On 1 August 2021, the
nature of the business of the Company has been altered by inserting new activity of
provides full-service electronics manufacturing services starting from design, development,
and manufacturing to marketing of electronic products and components for the automotive
and consumer markets.

The principal activity of the subsidiary is disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the activities of its subsidiary
during the financial year.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Group and
Company
RM
Profit for the financial year 12,208,234
DIVIDENDS
Dividends paid since the end of the previous financial year are as follows:-
RM
In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2020
Second interim single tier dividend of 25 sen per ordinary share, paid on
15 June 2020 1,500,000
Third interim single tier dividend of 25 sen per ordinary share, paid on
15 September 2020 1,500,000
Fourth interim single tier dividend of 25 sen per ordinary share, paid on
15 December 2020 1,500,000
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DIVIDENDS (CONT’D)

Dividends paid since the end of the previous financial year are as follows (cont’d):-

RM
In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2021
First interim single tier dividend of 25 sen per ordinary share, paid on
15 March 2021 1,500,000
6,000,000

The Directors do not recommend any final dividend for the current financial year.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year
except as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The name of the Directors of the Company in office during the financial year and during
the period commencing from the end of the financial year to the date of this report are as
follows:-

Mirzan Bin Mahathir*
Muhammad Fauzi Bin Abd Ghani (Appointed on 1 March 2021)
Ho Wai Fung (Resigned on 31 March 2021)

* Director of the Company and subsidiary

The Director of the subsidiary who held office during the financial year and up to the date
of this report is as follows:-

Megat Iskandar Hashim Bin Ismail
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings required to be kept under Section 59
of the Companies Act 2016, the interests and deemed interests in the ordinary shares of the
Company and its related corporations of those who were Directors as at the financial year
end are as follows:-

Number of ordinary shares
At At
1.4.2020 Bought Sold 31.3.2021

Deemed interest
Mirzan Bin Mahathir 3,900,000 - - 3,900,000

Deemed interest by virtue of his direct interest in Iskandar Holdings Sdn. Bhd..

By virtue of the Directors’ direct interest in the Company, they are also deemed to have
ainterest in the shares of the subsidiary to the extent that the Company has an interest under
Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the other Directors in office at the end of the
financial year had any interest in shares of the Company or its related corporations during
the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

During the financial year, the fees and other benefits received and receivable by the
Directors of the Group and of the Company are as follows:-

Group and
Company
RM

Directors’ fee 255,000
Directors’ other emoluments 717,514

072,514

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements subsisted to which the
Company is a party, with the object or objects of enabling Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

There were no changes in the issued and paid-up capital and no issuance of debentures
during the financial year.
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SHARE OPTIONS

No options have been granted by the Company to any parties during the financial year to
take up unissued shares of the Company.

No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of any option
to take up unissued shares of the Company. As at the end of the financial year, there were
no unissued shares of the Company under options.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the
Directors took reasonable steps:-

(a) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad
debts and the making of provision for doubtful debts, and satisfied themselves that
there were no bad debts to be written off and no provision for doubtful debts was
required; and

(b)  to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary
course of business including their values as shown in the accounting records of the
Group and of the Company have been written down to an amount which they might
be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:-

(a) which would render it necessary to write off any bad debts or to make any provision
for doubtful debts in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company; or

(b) which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company misleading; or

(c) which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of
valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or

inappropriate; or

(d) not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements which would
render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:-

(a) any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the
end of the financial year which secures the liability of any other person; or

(b) any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the
end of the financial year.
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONT’D)

In the opinion of the Directors:-

(a)

()

(c)

no contingent liability or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to
become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the
financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Group and of the Company
to meet their obligations as and when they fall due;

the results of operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year
were not substantially affected by any item, transactions or event of a material and
unusual nature; and

there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date
of this report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely
to affect substantially the results of operations of the Group and of the Company for
the current financial year in which this report is made.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

There was no indemnity coverage and insurance premium paid for Directors and Officers
of the Group and of the Company during the financial year.

HOLDING COMPANY

The Company is a subsidiary of Iskandar Holdings Sdn. Bhd., a private limited liability
company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The Directors regard Iskandar Holdings
Sdn. Bhd. as ultimate holding company.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The significant events during the financial year are disclosed in Note 31 to the financial
statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The events after the reporting period are disclosed in Note 32 to the financial statements.
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AUDITORS

The Auditors’ remuneration of the Group and of the Company-are disclosed in Note 22 to
the financial statements.

The Group and the Company have agreed to indemnify the Auditors, Grant Thomton
Malaysia PLT as permitted under Section 289 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. No
payment has been made to indemnify Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT for the financial year
ended 31 March 2021,

The Auditors, Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT, have expressed their willingness to continue
in office.

Signed by the Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

)
MIRZAN BIN MAHATHIR }
)
)
)
)
) DIRECTORS
)
)
)
)
;
MUHAMMAD FAUZI BIN ABD GHANI )
Kuala Lumpur
29 September 2021
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BETAMEK ELECTRONICS (M) SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malays_ia)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 14 to 81 are drawn
up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31
March 2021 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then
ended.

Signed by the Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Bgard of Directors.

..........................................................

MIRZAN BIN MAHATHIR
BIN ABI) GHANI
Kuala Lumpur
29 September 2021
STATUTORY DECLARATION

I, Mirzan Bin Mahathir, being the Director primarily responsible for the financial
management of Betamek Electronics (M) Sdn. Bhd., do solemnly and sincerely declare that
to the best of my knowledge and belief, the financial statements set out on pages 14 fo 81
are correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true
and by virtue of the Statutory Declarations Act 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by )
the abovenamed at Kuala Lumpur in )
the Federal Territory this day of )
29 September 2021 )

.........................................................................

Tingkat 6 Wisma Harwant
Jatan Tuanku Abdul Rahman
50100 Kuala Lumpur
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Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT
Level 11, Sheraton Imperial Court

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF Jalan Sultan Ismail
50260 Kuala Lumpur
BETAMEK ELECTRONICS (M) SDN. BHD. Malagsia
(Incorporated in Malaysia) T +603 2692 4022
Registration No: 198901008551 (185853-K) F +603 26915229

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Betamek Electronics (M) Sdn. Bhd., which
comprise the statements of financial position as at 31 March 2021 of the Group and of the
Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and the Company for the financial
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 14 to 81.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis of our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on
Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-
Laws™) and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (“IESBA
Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws
and the IESBA Code.

10
Audit | Tax | Advisory

Chartared Aceeuntants
Grant Thornton Malaysio PLT (201905003682 [LLPODZ2494-LCA] & AF 0737] is a Limited Liability Partnership and is @ member
firm of Grant Thornton Internctioncl Ltd [GTIE), a private company limited by guarantee, incorperated in England and Wales.

Grant Thernton Malaysia PLT was registered on 1January 2620 and with effect from that date, Grant Thorntor Malaysia
[AF 0737), & conventional partnership was cenverted to a Limited Liability Partnership, gruntthornton.com.mg
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Registration No: 198901008551 (185853-K)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors’ Report but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company and our auditors’ report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the
Directors’ Report and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our
responsibility is to read the Directors’ Report and, in doing so, consider whether the Directors’
Report is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the
Directors’ Report, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the
Group and of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as
the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the
Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved
standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

11
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Registration No: 198901008551 (185853-K)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:-

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and of the Company’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s or the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
of the Group and of the Company represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial
statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicated with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identified during our audit.

12
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Other Matters

L.

As stated in Note 2.4.1 to the financial statements, Betamek Electronics (M) Sdn. Bhd.
adopted Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards on 1 April 2020 with a transition date
of 1 April 2019. These standards were applied retrospectively by the Directors to the
comparative information in these financial statements, including the statements of
financial position as at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2019, the statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash
flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2020 and
related disclosures. We were not engaged to report on the Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards transition comparative information and it is unaudited. Our responsibilities as
part of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the
financial year then ended 31 March 2021, in these circumstances, included obtaining
sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the opening balances as at 1 April 2020 do not
contain misstatements that materially affect the financial position as at 31 March 2021
and the financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended,

2. This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with
Section 266 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not
assume the responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

podllte Mg P L.

GRANT THORNTON MALAYSIA PL FOO LEE MENG
(201906003682 & LLP002249%4-1.CA) (NO: 03069/07/2023(1))
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' (AF 0737) CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

Kuala Lumpur

29 September 2021
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BETAMEK ELECTRONICS (M) SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

Group Company
Restated Restated Restated Restated
Note 31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019 31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM RM RM RM
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 37,808,231 18,875,227 18,448 446 37,808,231 18,875,227 18,448,446
Right-of-use assets 5 185,504 236,096 50,531 185,504 236,096 50,531
Intangible asset 6 5,455,997 860,888 - 5,455,997 860,888 -
Investment in a subsidiary 7 - - - 100 100 100
Cash and bank balances, deposits and
placements 8 266,493 256,404 246,481 266,493 256,464 246,481
Tota! non-current assets 43,716,225 20,228,675 18,745,458 43,716,325 20,228,775 18,745,558
Current assets
Inventories 9 38,920,390 33,456,255 38,128,728 38,920,390 33,456,255 38,128,728
Trade receivables 10 17,059,164 9,198,619 14,500,965 17,059,164 9,198,619 14,500,965
Other receivables 11 11,365,783 8,568,469 7,097,990 11,365,783 8,568,469 7,097,990
Other investments 12 161,604 2,544,585 2,610,024 161,604 2,544,585 2,610,024
Tax recoverable 266,327 292,576 - 266,327 292,576 -
Cash and bank balances, deposits and
placements g 14,195,990 27434212 10,348,642 14,195,990 27,434,212 10,348,642
Total current assets 81,969,258 81,494,716 72,686,349 81,969,258 81,494,716 72,686,349
TOTAL ASSETS 125,685,483 101,723,391 91,431,807 125,685,583 101,723,491 91,431,907
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company:-
Share capital 13 8,000,000 §,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000 2,000,000
Retained earnings 78,960,672 72,752,438 68,879,470 78,960,772 72,752,538 68,879,570
Total equity 86,960,672 80,752,438 76,879,470 86,960,772 80,752,538 76,879,570
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 14 22,137,330 10,581,820 - 22,137,330 10,581,820 -
Lease liabilities 15 86,588 115,601 - 86,588 115,601 -
Deferred tax liabilities 16 2,360,000 1,462,000 1,502,000 2,360,000 1,462,000 1,502,000
Total non-current Habilities 24,583,918 12,159,421 1,502,000 24,583,918 12,159,421 1,502,000
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BETAMEK ELECTRONICS (M) SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2021 (CONT’D)

LIABILITIES (CONT’D)
Current liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables

Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES

Note

17
18
14
15

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of the financial statements.

Group Company
Restated Restated Restated Restated
31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019 31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM RM RM RM

8,696,266 5,430,794 10,223,476 8,696,266 5,430,794 10,223,476
4,259,061 2,082,589 2,071,244 4,259,061 2,082,589 2,071,244
1,156,553 1,270,464 - 1,156,553 1,270,464 -
29,013 27,685 25,902 29,013 27,685 25,902
- - 729,715 - - 729,715
14,140,893 8,811,532 13,050,337 14,140,893 8,811,532 13,050,337
38,724,811 20,970,953 14,552,337 38,724,811 20,970,953 14,552,337
125,685,483 101,723,391 91,431,807 125,685,583 101,723,491 61,431,907
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BETAMEK ELECTRONICS (M) SDN. BHD.
(Tncorperated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income
Distribution expenses
Administration expenses

Property, plant and equipment
written off

Other expenses
Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs
Profit before tax
Tax expense

Profit/Total comprehensive
income for the financial year

Group Company
Restated Restated
Note 2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM
19 125,869,218 130,732,332 129,869,218 130,732,332
(99,586,936)  (103,930,823) (99,586,936)  (103,930,823)
30,282,282 26,801,509 30,282,282 26,801,509
1,708,257 291,907 1,708,257 291,907
(679,951) (435,616) (679,951) (435,616)
(5,533,569) (6,512,514) (5,533,569) (6,512,514)
(3,830,398) (4,526,448) (3,830,398) (4,526,448)
(2,646,209) (65,439) (2,646,209) (65,439)
19,300,412 15,553,399 19,300,412 15,553,399
20 160,073 209,163 160,073 209,163
21 (408,453) (346,031) (408,453) (346,031)
22 19,052,032 15,416,531 19,052,032 15,416,531
23 (6,843,798) (4,543,563) (6,843,798) (4,543,563)
12,208,234 10,872,968 12,208,234 10,872,968

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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BETAMEK ELECTRONICS (M) SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Group
At1 April 2019

Transaction with owners:-~
Dividends

Total comprehensive income for the financial year
At 31 March 2020

Impact of change in accounting policy

At 1 April 2020, restated

Transaction with owners:-
Dividends

Total comprehensive income for the financial year

At 31 March 2021

Company
At1 April 2019

Transaction with owners:-
Dividends

Total comprehensive income for the financial year
At 31 March 2020

Impact of change in accounting policy

At 1 April 2020, restated

Transaction with owners:-
Dividends

Total comprehensive income for the financial year

At 31 March 2021

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements,

Non-distributable Distributable
Share Retained
Note capital garnings Total
RM RM RM
8,000,000 68,879,470 76,879,470
24 - (7,000,000) (7,000,000)
- 10,012,080 10,012,080
8,000,000 71,891,550 79,891,550
2.4.1 - 860,888 860,888
8,000,000 72,752,438 80,752,438
24 - {6,000,000) (6,000,000}
- 12,208,234 12,208,234
8,000,000 78,960,672 86,960,672
8,000,000 68,879,570 76,879,570
24 - (7,000,000) {7,000,000)
- 10,012,080 10,012,080
8,000,000 71,891,650 79,891,650
24.1 - 860,888 860,888
8,000,000 72,752,538 80,752,538
24 - (6,000,000) (6,000,000)
- 12,208,234 12,208,234
8,000,000 78,960,772 86,960,772
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BETAMEK ELECTRONICS (M) SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Group Company
Restated Restated
Note 2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 19,052,032 15,416,531 19,052,032 15,416,531
Adjustments for:-

Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment 2,597,899 1,991,986 2,597,899 1,991,986
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 50,592 67,395 50,592 67,395
Dividend income (14,248) (3,681) (14,248) (3,681)
Fair value adjustment on other investments 2,382,981 65,439 2,382,981 65,439
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (805,880) (25,543) (805,880) (25,543)
Interest expenses 408,453 346,031 408,453 346,031
Interest income (160,073) (209,163) (160,073) (209,163)
Inventories written off 89,757 - 86,757 -
Property, plant and equipment written off 3,830,398 4,526,448 3,830,398 4,526,448
Operating profit before working capital changes 27,431,911 22,175,443 27,431,911 22,175,443
Changes in working capital:-

Inventories (5,553,892) 4,672,473 (5,553,892) 4,672,473
Receivables (10,657,859) 3,831,867 (10,657,859) 3,831,867
Payables 5,441,944 (4,781,337) 5,441,944 (4,781,337)
Cash generated from operations 16,662,104 25,898,446 16,662,104 25,898,446
Income tax paid, net of refund (5,919,549) (5,605,854) (5,919,549) (5,605,854)
Interest received 150,044 199,180 150,044 199,180
Interest paid (20,010) (12,659) (20,010) {12,659)
Net cash flows from operating activities 10,872,589 20,479,113 10,872,589 20,479,113
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividend received 14,248 3,681 14,248 3,681
Purchase of intangible asset (4,595,109) (860,888) (4,595,109) (860,888)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (26,387,784) (7,263,891) (26,887,734) (7,263,891)
Purchase of right-of-use assets - (102,960) - (102,960)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment 2,332,363 344,219 2,332,363 344,219
Net cash flows used in investing activities (29,136,282) (7,879,839)  (29,136,282) (7,879,839)
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BETAMEK ELECTRONICS (M) SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 (CONT’D)

Group Company
Restated Restated
Note 2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid {(6,000,000) (7,000,000) (6,000,000) (7,000,000)
Drawdown of term loans 12,327,481 12,383,176 12,327,481 12,383,176
Interest arising from fixed deposits pledged (10,029) (9,983) (10,029} (9,983)
Interest received 10,029 0,983 10,029 9,983
Interest paid (388,443) (333,372) (388,443) (333,372)
Repayment of lease liabilities {27.685) (32,616) (27,685) (32,616)
Repayment of term loans (885,882) (530,892) {885,382) {530,892)
Net cash flows from financing activities 5,025,471 4,486,296 5,025,471 4,486,296
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Net changes (13,238,222)y 17,085,570 (13,238,222) 17,085,570
Brought forward 27,434,212 10,348,642 27,434,212 10,348,642
Carried forward B 14,195,990 27,434,212 14,195,990 27,434,212
NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
A. PURCHASE OF RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM
Total purchase of right-of-use assets - 252,960 - 252,960
Less: Acquired under lease arrangements - {150,000) - (150,000)
Cash payment - 102,960 - 102,960
B. CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTS
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM
Fixed deposits with a licensed bank 351,323 341,294 351,323 341,294
Short-term placements 11,000,000 - 11,000,000 -
Cash and bank balances 3,111,160 27,349,382 3,111,160 27,349,382
14,462 483 27,690,676 14,462,483 27,690,676
Less: Fixed deposits pledged with licensed banks (266,493) (256,464) (266,493) {256,464)
14,195,990 27,434,212 14,195,990 27434212
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BETAMEK ELECTRONICS (M) SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 (CONT’D)

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Group and Company 1 April Cash 31 March
2020 flows Additions 2021
RM RM rRM RM
Lease liabilities 143,286 (27,685) - 115,601
Term loans 11,852,284 (885,882) 12,327,481 23,293,883
Total 11,995,570 (913,567) 12,327,481 23,409,484
I April Cash 31 March
2019 flows Additions 2020
RM RM RM RM
Lease liabilities 25,902 (32,616) 150,000 143,286
Term loans - (530,892) 12,383,176 11,852,284
Total 25,902 {563,508) 12,533,176 11,995,570

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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2.1

2.2

BETAMEK ELECTRONICS (M) SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2021

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a private limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in
Malaysia. The registered office of the Company is located at 12th Floor, Menara
Symphony, No. 5, Jalan Prof. Khoo Kay Kim, Seksyen 13, 46200 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor Darul Eshan. The principal place of business of the Company is located at
Lot 137, Lingkaran Taman Industri Integrasi Rawang 2, Taman Industri Integrasi
Rawang, 48000 Rawang, Selangor Darul Ehsan.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of
automotive infotainment multimedia systems and connected mobility solutions. On
1 August 2021, the nature of the business of the Company has been altered by
inserting new activity of provides full-service electronics manufacturing services
starting from design, development, and manufacturing to marketing of electronic
products and components for the automotive and consumer markets.

The principal activity of the subsidiary is disclosed in Note 7 to the financial
statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the activities of its
subsidiary during the financial year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Iskandar Holdings Sdn. Bhd., a private limited
liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The Directors regard
Iskandar Holdings Sdn. Bhd. as ultimate holding company.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in
accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 29 September 2021,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs™),
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the requirements of
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company are prepared under

historical cost convention, except for the equity financial assets that have been
measured at fair value.
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2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
Basis of measurement (cont’d)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date and its measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group and the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of
a non-financial market takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group and the Company use valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to their fair value
measurement as a whole:-

(a) Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.
(b) Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is

significant to their fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.

(c) Level3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to their fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group and the Company determine whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to their fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting year.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group and the Company have
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of fair value hierarchy as explained
above.
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2.3

2.4

24.1

242

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”) which is the
Company’s functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest RM except
when otherwise stated.

MFRS
First-time adoption of MFRSs

In the previous financial years, the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company were prepared in accordance with Malaysian Private Entities Reporting
Standard (“MPERS”) issued by Malaysian Accounting Standards Board.

These are the Group’s and the Company’s first financial statements prepared in
accordance with MFRSs and MFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards has been applied.

In presenting their first MFRS financial statements, the Group and the Company
have restated the comparative financial statements to amounts reflecting the
application of MFRS Framework. The majority of the adjustments required on
transition has been made retrospectively, against opening retained earnings.

The accounting policies set out in Note 3 to the financial statements have been
applied consistently in preparing these financial statements of the Group and of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the comparative information
presented in the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2021
and in the preparation of the opening MFRSs statement of financial position at 1
April 2019 (the date of transition of MFRSs).

The effect of the initial application of MFRSs is disclosed in Note 30 to the
financial statements.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet
effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group’s and of the Company’s financial
statements are disclosed below. The Group and the Company intend to adopt these
new and amended standards and interpretations, if applicable, when they become
effective.

Effective for the financial period beginning on or afier I June 2020:-
Amendments to MERS 16 Leases: Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions
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2.4

242

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)

MFRS (cont’d)

Standards issued but not yet effective (cont’d)

Effective for the financial period beginning on or after 1 January 2021 .-
Amendments to MFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

MFRS 139, MFRS 7, MFRS
4* and MFRS 16

Effective for the financial period beginning on or after 1 April 2021 :-
Amendments to MFRS 16 Leases: Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Effective for the financial period beginning on or after 1 January 2022:-

Amendments to MFRS 3% Business Combinations: Reference to the
Conceptual Framework
Amendments to MFRS Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds Before
116 Intended Use

Amendments to MFRS 137  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets: Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018 — 2020 (MFRS 1, MFRS 9 and
MFRS141%)

Effective for the financial period beginning on or after I January 2023:-

MEFRS 17* Insurance Conftracts

Amendments to MFRS 17*  Insurance Confracts

Amendments to MFRS 4* Insurance Contracts: Extension of the Temporary
Exemption from Applying MFRS 9

Amendments to MFRS 101  Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current

Amendments to MFRS 101  Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

Amendments to MFRS 108  Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors: Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Amendments to MFRS 112 Income Taxes - Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to MFRSs — effective date deferred indefinitely:-
Amendments to MFRS 10* Consolidated Financial Statements and Investments
and MFRS 128%* in Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and Its
Associate or Joint Venture
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2.5

2.5.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
MEFRS (cont’d)
Standards issued but not yet effective (cont’d)

*  Not applicable to the Group’s and Company’s operation.
#  Not applicable to Company’s operation.

The initial application of the above standards and amendments are not expected to
have material financial impact to the financial statements of the Group and the
Company upon its first adoption.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the
preparation of the financial statements. They affect the application of the Group’s
and of the Company’s accounting policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The actual results may differ from the
judgements, estimates and assumptions made by management, and will seldom
equal the estimated results.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Information about significant estimates and assumptions that have the most
significant effect on recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and

expenses are discussed below.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management estimates the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to be within 5 to 50 years and reviews the useful lives of
depreciable assets at end each of the reporting period. At 31 March 2021,
management assesses that the useful lives represent the expected usage of the assets
of the Group and of the Company. Actual result, however, may vary due to change
in the expected level of usage and technology developments, which resulting in
adjustment to the assets of the Group and of the Company.

Impairment of non-financial assets

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. To determine
the recoverable amount, management estimates expected future cash flows from
each cash-generafing unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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2.5.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

Impairment of non-financial assets (cont’d)

In the process of measuring expected future cash flows, management makes
assumptions about future operating results. The actual results may vary, and may
cause significant adjustments to the Group’s and the Company’s assets within the
next financial year.

In most cases, determining the applicable discount rate involves estimating the
appropriate adjustment to market risk and the appropriate adjustment to asset-
specific risk factors.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In estimating
net realisable values, management takes into account the most reliable evidence
available at the times the estimates are made. The Group’s and the Company’s core
business is subject to economic and social preference which may cause selling
prices to change rapidly, and the Group’s and the Company’s profit to change.

Provision for expected credit losses (“ECLs™) of trade receivables

The Group and the Company use a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on the repayment pattern of the
customers, customers type and coverage by letters of credit.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s and the Company’s historical
observed default rates. The Group and the Company will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected
to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults
in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast
economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate., The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The
Group’s and the Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in
the future.
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2.5

2.5.1

2.5.2

3.1

3.1.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

Income taxes/Deferred tax liabilities

Significant judgement is involved in determining the Group’s and the Company’s
provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and computations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group and the Company recognised tax liabilities based on estimates
of whether additional tax will be due. Where the final tax outcome is different from
the amounts that were initially recognised, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Significant management judgement

There is no significant management judgement in applying the accounting policies
of the Group and of the Company that have the most significant effect on the
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group and the Company apply the significant accounting policies, as
summarised below, consistently throughout all periods presented in the financial
statements, unless otherwise stated.

Consolidation
Subsidiary

Subsidiary is entity, including structured entity, controlled by the Group and the
Company. Control exists when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Potential voting rights are considered
when assessing control only when such rights are substantive. Besides, the Group
and the Company consider it has de facto power over an investee when, despite not
having the majority of voting rights, it has the current ability to direct the activities
of the investee that significantly affect the investee’s return.

Investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment Josses in the
Company’s financial position unless the investment is held for sale or distribution.
The cost of investments includes transaction costs. Where an indication of
impairment exists, the carrying amount of the subsidiary is assessed and written
down immediately to its recoverable amount.

Upon the disposal of investment in a subsidiary, the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and its carrying amount is included in profit or loss.
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3.1

3.1.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Consolidation (cont’d)
Basis of consolidation

The Group’s financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiary, which have been prepared in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policies. Amounts reported in the financial statements of
subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group. The financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiary are all drawn up to the same reporting date.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating fo fransactions between entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting
from intragroup transactions that are recognised in asset, such as inventory and
property, plant and equipment) are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the
consolidated financial statements. Temporary differences arising from the
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions will be
treated in the notes to the financial statements.

Subsidiary is consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group and are no longer consclidated from the date that control ceases.

Changes in the Company owners’ ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. In such
circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

" and attributed to owners of the Company.

Business combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of
an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether it
measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs
incurred are expensed and included in administration expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as af the
acquisition date.
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3.1

3.1.3

3.14

3.15

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Consolidation (cont’d)
Business combination (cont’d)

The Group celects for each individual business combination, whether non-
controlling interest in the acquiree, if any, is recognised on the acquisition date at
fair value, or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net identifiable assets.

Loss of control

Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components
of the equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of
control is recognised in profit or loss.

If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is
measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted
for as an equity accounted investee or as a financial asset depending on the level of
influence retained.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting year, being the equity in a
subsidiary not atfributable directly or indirectly to the equity holders of the
Company, are presented in the consolidated statements of financial position and
statements of changes in equity within equity, separately from equity attributable to
the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group is
presented in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the profit or loss and the comprehensive income for the
financial year between non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary is allocated to the
non-controlling interests even if that results in a deficit balance.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in RM at rates of exchange ruling at
the date of the fransactions. Foreign currencies monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at reporting date.

Gains and losses resulting from settlement of such transactions and conversion of
monetary assets and liabilities, whether realised or unrealised, are included in the

income statement as they arise.

All other foreign exchange differences are taken to the statements of comprehensive
income in the financial year in which they arise.
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33

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at cost. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All property, plant
and equipment are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
less any impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
assefs and any other costs directly attributable to bring the asset to working
condition for its intended use, cost of replacing component parts of the assets, and
the present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the assets after
their use. The cost of self-constructed assets also includes the cost of materials and
direct labour. For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are capitalised in accordance
with the accounting policy on borrowing costs. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised on the straight-line method in order to write off the cost
of each asset over its estimated useful life. Freehold land with an infinite life is not
depreciated.

Other property, plant and equipment are depreciated based on the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:-

Freehold building and renovation 2%
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 20%
Tools, equipment and moulds 10%
Fumiture and office equipment 10%

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable, or at least annually to ensure that the amount,
method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the items
of property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss arising on the
disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognised in
profit or loss in the financial year in which the asset is derecognised.
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3.4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Leases

The Group and the Company assess at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a lessee

The Group and the Company apply a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group and the Company recognise lease liabilities to make lease payments and

right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Group and the Company recognise right-of-use assets at the commencement
date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-
use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:-

Motor vehicles 20%

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group and the Company at the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation
is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting
policies in Note 3.6 to the financial statements.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group and the Company recognise
lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and the Company and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group and the
Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred fo
produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Leases (cont’d)

As a lessee (cont’d)

Lease liabilities (cont’d

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group and the Company use
their incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group and the Company apply the short-term lease recognition exemption to
their short-term leases of machinery, equipment and premises (i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and
expenditure is reflected in the profit or loss in the period in which it incurred.

The useful life of intangible assets is assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite life are amortised on straight-line basis over the
estimated economic useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset
is accounted for by charging the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and -
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite useful life is recognised in the profit or loss in the
expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

32



Registration No: 198901008551 (185853-K)

3.

3.5

3.5.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Intangible assets (cont’d)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually or
more frequently if the events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired either individually or at cash-generating unit level. Such
intangibles are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the useful life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite
is made on a prospective basis.

(Gain or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development costs

All research costs are immediately recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capifalised as
development costs and deferred only when the Group and the Company can

demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the

~ asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of

resources to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Development costs which do not meet these criteria are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Capitalised development costs comprise direct attributable costs incurred for
development. Capitalised development costs, considered to have finite useful lives,
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Development costs are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products from the date the products are
commercialised.

The amortisation period and method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that the expected useful lives of the assets are consistent with
previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefits embodied in the items of intangible assets.
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3.6

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group and the Company estimate
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (“CGU”) fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are faken into
account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly trade subsidiaries or other available fair value
indicators.

The Group and the Company base their impairment calculation on detailed budgets
and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s and
the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated.
These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five
years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and applied to
project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group and the
Company estimate the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss has
been recognised for asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the profit or
loss.
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3.

3.7

3.8

3.8.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Inventories

Inventories, comprising raw materials, accessories and consumables, work-in-
progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
(“NRV™) after adequate specific write down has been made by the Directors for
deteriorated, obsolete and slow-moving inventories.

Cost of raw materials is determined using weighted average method and finished
goods include direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
manufacturing overheads. Cost includes the original purchase price plus direct cost
of bringing these inventories to their present condition and location.

Net realisable value represents estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated selling and distribution costs and all other estimated costs to
completion.

When inventories are sold and revenue is recognised, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as cost of goods sold. Write-down to NRV and inventory
losses are recognised as expenses when it occurred and any reversal is recognised in
the profit or loss in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one
entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“OCI”), and fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial
asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s and the Company’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group and the
Company have applied the practical expedient, the Group and the Company
initially measure a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group and the Company have
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price.
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3.

3.8

3.8.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial assets (cont’d)

Initial recognition and measurement (cont’d)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair
value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at
FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s and the Company’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets
classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling,

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way
trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group and the
Company commit to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:

. Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments);

. Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative
gains and losses (debt instruments);

. Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of

cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments); or
. Financial assets at FVTPL.
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3.8

3.8.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial assets (cont’d)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective
interest (“EIR™) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
The Group’s and the Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade
and most of other receivables and cash and bank balances, deposits and placements.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the statements of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the profit or loss.

This category includes listed equity investments which the Group and the Company
had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on
listed equity investments are recognised as other income in the profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established.

The Group’s and the Company’s equity instruments at FVTPL includes other
investments.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group and the Company have transferred their rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or have assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement and either (a) the Group and the Company have transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group and the
Company have neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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3.

3.8

3.8.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial assets (cont’d)

Derecognition (cont’d)

When the Group and Company have transferred their rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or have entered into a passthrough arrangement, they evaluate if, and
to what extent, they have retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When they
have neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group and the Company continue to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group and the Company also recognise an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group and the Company have retained. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group and the Company could be
required to repay.

Impairment

The Group and the Company recognise an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group and the Company expect to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-
meonths (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

Impairment for trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group and the Company apply a simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group and the Company do not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group and the Company have established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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3.8

3.8.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial assets (cont’d)

Impairment (cont’d)

Impairment for financial assets other than trade receivables

The Group and the Company consider the probability of default upon initial
recognition of the asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group and the Company compare the risk
of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as
at the date of initial recognition. The assessment considers available, reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information.

Credit impaired

An impairment loss in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account.

An impairment loss in respect of debt investments measured at fair value through
OClI is recognised in profit or loss and the allowance account is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

At each reporting date, the Group and the Company assess whether the financial
assets carried at amortised cost and debt securities at fair value through OCI are
credit-impatred.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows. The Group and the Company consider a
receivable as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated cash flows have occurred. These instances include adverse
changes in the financial capability of the debtor and default or significant delay in
payments. However, in certain cases, the Group and the Company may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group and the Company are unlikely to receive the outstanding
confractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group and the Company. However, financial assets that are written off could
still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s or the
Company’s procedures for recovery amounts due.
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3.

3.8

3.82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two
categories:

. Financial liabilities at FVTPL; or
. Financial liabilities at amortised cost.

The Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities include trade and most of other
payables and borrowings.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the category most relevant to the Group and the Company. After initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to interest-bearing borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
profit or loss.

40



Registration No: 198901008551 (185853-K)

3.

3.8

3.8.3

3.9

3.10

3.11

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Financial instruments (cont’d)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, deposits with
licensed banks and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amount of cash which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of statements of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
restricted to be used to settle a liability of 12 months or more after the end of the
reporting period are classified as non-current asset.

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are
presented net of pledged deposits.

Equity, reserves and distribution to owners

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity
instruments.

Retained earnings include all current and prior periods’ accumulated profits.

Dividends are accounted for in shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of refained
earnings and recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.

All transactions with owners of the Company are recorded separately within equity.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group and the Company have a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Group and the Company expect some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the profit or loss net of any
reimbursement.
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3.11

3.12

3.12.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Provisions (cont’d)

If the effect of the time of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance costs.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an
expense in the financial period, in which the associated services are rendered by
employees of the Group and the Company. Short-term accumulating compensated
absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when services are rendered by
employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences, and
short-term non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave are
recognised when the absences occur.

3.12.2 Defined contribution plans

3.13

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the
Group and the Company pay fixed contributions into separate entities of funds and
will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contribution if any of the
funds do not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee
services in the current and preceding financial years.

Such contributions are recognised as expenses in the profit or loss incurred. As
required by law, the Company and its subsidiary, all of which were incorporated in
Malaysia, make such contributions to the Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”).

Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when or as a performance
obligation in the contract with customer is satisfied, i.e. when the “control” of the
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation is a promise in a confract with a customer to transfer to
the customer either:-

(a) good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and that
have the same pattern of transfer to the customer.
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3.13

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Revenue (cont’d)

Revenue from contracts with customers is measured at the amount of consideration
to which the Group and the Company expect to be enfitled in exchange for
transferring the promised services to the customers, excluding amounts collected on
behalf of third parties such as sales taxes or services taxes. If the amount of
consideration varies due to discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, incentives, penalties
or other similar items, the Group and the Company estimate the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled based on the expected value or the most
likely outcome.

If the contract with customer contains more than one performance obligation, the
amount of consideration is allocated to each performance obligation based on the
relative standalone selling prices of the goods or services promised in the contract.

The amount of variable consideration is recognised to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the uncertainly associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

The control of the promised goods or services may be transferred over time or at a
point in time. The control over the goods or services is transferred over time and
revenue is recognised over time if:-

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s and the Company’s performance as the Group and the Company
perform,;

(b) the Group’s and the Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s and the Company’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use and the Group and the Company have an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Revenue for performance obligation that is not satisfied over time is recognised at
the point in time at which the customer obtains control of the promised goods or
services.

For performance obligations where any one of the above conditions not met,
revenue is recognised at a point in time at which the performance obligation is
satisfied.

When the Group and the Company satisfy a performance obligation by delivering
the promised goods or service, it creates a contract based on asset on the amount of
consideration earned by the performance. Where the amount of consideration
received from a customer exceeds the amount of revenue recognised, this gives rise
to a contract liability.
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3.13

3.13.1

3.13.2

3.14

3.14.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Revenue (cont’d)

Sales of goods

Revenue relating to sales of goods is recognised net of sales returns and discount
upon the transfer of control of the goods to the customers. Revenue is not
recognised to extent were there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of
the consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

Other revenue recognition

Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the profit or loss on time proportion basis, taking
into account the principal outstanding and the effective rate over the period to
maturity, when it is determined that such income will accrue to the Group and the
Company.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Group’s or the
Company’s right to receive payment is established, which is in the case of quoted
securities is the ex-dividend date.

Tax expenses

Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination or items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.
Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable profit or loss for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

year, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Current tax for current and prior periods is recognised in the statements of financial
position as a liability (or an asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (or refundable).
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3.14

3.14.2

3.15

3.16

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Tax expenses (cont’d)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the statements
of financial position and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not recognised for the
temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they
intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Sales and service tax (“SST”)

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of SST, except:-

(1) When the SST incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not
recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the SST is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
gxpense item, as applicable;

(ii)  When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of SST included.

The amount of SST payable to taxation authority is included as part of payables in
the statements of financial position.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or

production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective
interest method.
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3.16

3.17

3.17.1

3.17.2

3.18

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Borrowing costs (cont’d)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or completed.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is not recognised in the
statements of financial position and is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets

When an inflow of economic benefit of an asset is probable where it arises from
past events and where existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the entity, the asset is not recognised in the statements of financial position but is
being disclosed as a contingent asset. When the inflow of economic benefit is
virtually certain, then the related asset is recognised.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group and the Company
that is preparing its financial statements. A related party transaction is a transfer of
resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and its related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.
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3.

3.18

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Related parties (cont’d)

(a)

(®

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
reporting entity if that person:-

6} Has control or joint control over the Group and the Company;

(i)  Has significant influence over the Group and the Company; or

(i) Is a member of the key management personnel of the ultimate
holding company of the Group and the Company.

An entity is related to the Group and the Company if any of the following
conditions applies:-

@ The entity and the Group or the Company are members of the same
group;

(ii)  The entity is an associate or joint venture of the Group or the
Company;

(i)  Both the Group or the Company and the entity are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv)  The Group or the Company is a joint venture of a third entity and the
entity is an associate of the same third entity;

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefits of
employees of either the Group or the Company for an entity related
to the Group or the Company;

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by a person identified in
(a) above;

(vil) A person identified in (a)(i) above has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
corporate shareholders of the Group or the entity; or

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Group.
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Registration No: 198901008551 (185853-K)

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)
Group and Company
The freehold land and freehold building with net carrying amount amounted to
RM19,040,616 (31.3.2020; RM9,623,213 and 1.4.2019: RM9,349,254) is pledged as
securities for bank borrowings as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements.

5. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Group and Company
As alessee
The Group and the Company have lease for motor vehicles that run for 5 years.
The Group and the Company also have lease of premises and machine and
equipment with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Group and the Company apply

the ‘short-term lease’ recognition exemption for these leases.

Set out are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements
during the financial year:-

Motor
Group and Company vehicles

RM
Cost
At 1 April 2019 -
Effect of adoption of MFRS 16 288,184
At 1 April 2019, restated 288,184
Additions 252,960
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (288,184)
At 31 March 2020, restated/At 31 March 2021 252,960
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2019 -
Effect of adoption of MFRS 16 237,653
At 1 April 2019, restated 237,653
Charge for the financial year 67,395
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (288,184)
At 31 March 2020, restated 16,864
Charge for the financial year 50,592
At 31 March 2021 67,456
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5. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONT’D)

Motor
Group and Company (cont’d) vehicles
RM
Net carrying amount
At 31 March 2021 185,504
At 31 March 2020, restated 236,096
At 1 April 2019, restated 50,531

Group and Company

The motor vehicles above are held under finance lease arrangements and pledged as
security for the related finance lease.

The motor vehicles above are registered under the name of a Director of the Group
and of the Company and being held in trust by the said a Director.

6. INTANGIBLE ASSET

Development

Group and Company cost

RM
Cost
At 1 April 2019 -
Additions 860,888
At 31 March 2020, restated 860,888
Additions 4,595,109
At 31 March 2021 5,455,997

Group and Company
The development cost is incurred for developing new technology system. No
amortisation charges recorded in the financial year since the product is still under the

development phase.

Impairment Joss review of development cost

The Group and the Company test annually for impairment or more frequently if there
are indications that might be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, development cost has been allocated to the
Group’s and the Company’s cash generating units (“CGU”). The Group and the
Company identified according to the industry of the Group’s and the Company’s
operations.
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6.

INTANGIBLE ASSET (CONT’D)
Group and Company (cont’d)

Impairment loss review of development cost (cont’d)

Key assumptions made in determining the value-in-use are as follows:

- Cash flows were projected based on actual operating results and the five years
business plan;

- The discount rate applied to the cash flows projections are derived from the
weighted average cost of capital of the Group and the Company plus a
reasonable risk premium; and

- The size of operation will remain at least or not lower than the current results.

The key assumptions used for determining the value in use, which are determined
based on management’s past experience and expectation of the future development,
are as follows:-

Group and Company
31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
% % %

Discount rate 8.20 8.20 -

The projected cash flows from use are derived from the most recent financial
budgets approved by management.

With regards to the assessments, management believes that no reasonably possible
changes in any of the key assumptions would cause the carrying values of these
units to differ materially from their recoverable amounts except for the changes in
prevailing operating environment which is not ascertainable.

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY

Company
31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM
Unquoted shares, at cost 100 100 100
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7. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (CONT’D)

Company

The particulars of the subsidiary are as follows:;-

Principal
Name of place of Effective equity
company business Principal activities interest
31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
% % %
Betamek Sales & Malaysia  Buying, selling, 100 100 100
Service Sdn. servicing of car radio
Bhd. with cassette and CD
player and tracking of
spoilers. However,
the Company has

Non-current:-
Deposits with financia}
institutions

Current:-

Cash and bank balances

Deposits with financial
institutions

Group and Company

ceased its operation.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES, DEPOSITS AND PLACEMENTS

Group and Company

Restated
31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM
266,493 256,464 246,481
3,111,160 27,349,382 10,348,642
11,084,830 84,830 -
14,195,990 27,434,212 10,348,642
14,462,483 27,690,676 10,595,123

Deposits with financial institutions amounting to RM266,493 (31.3.2020:
RM256,464 and 1.4.2019: RM246,481) are pledged to a bank for banking facilities
granted to the Group and the Company.

The deposits with financial institutions will mature within 8 days to 365 days
(31.3.2020 and 1.4.2019: 365 days) with interest rates ranging from 0.85% to
1.85% (31.3.2020: 4.05% and 1.4.2019: 1.98% - 2.99%) per annum,
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9.

10.

INVENTORIES

At cost:-

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Recognised in profit or loss:-

Group and Company

Inventories written off

31.3.2021] 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM
17,024,962 16,492,562 18,626,770
16,461,762 13,181,052 15,106,735
5,433,666 3,782,641 4,395,223
38,920,390 33,456,255 38,128,728
2021 2020
RM RM

89,757 -
81,512,937 87,954,081

Inventories recognised in cost of sales

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Group and Company

The trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are recognised at their original
invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition. The normal
credit terms granted to the customers ranging from 30 days to 90 days (31.3.2020
and 1.4.2019: 30 days to 90 days). Other credit terms are assessed and approved by
the management on case-by-case basis.

11. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group and Company
Restated
31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM

Non-trade receivables 8,004 45,923 54,599
Deposits 635,833 771,238 136,647
Advances to suppliers 10,721,856 7,751,308 6,884,141
GST receivable - - 22,603

11,365,783 8,568,469 7,097,990
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12.

13.

14.

OTHER INVESTMENTS
Group and Company
31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM
Financial assets at fair value
Quoted shares in Malaysia, at
fair value 161,603 62,085 127,524
Unquoted shares outside
Malaysia, at fair value 1 2,482,500 2,482,500
161,604 2,544,585 2,610,024
SHARE CAPITAL
Group and Company
31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM
Issued and fully paid with
no par value:-
6,000,000 units of ordinary
shares 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividend as and when
declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without
restrictions and rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

BORROWINGS
Group and Company
31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM
Non-current
Secured:-
Term loans 22,137,330 10,581,820 -
Current
Secured:-
Term loans 1,156,553 1,270,464 -
23,293,883 11,852,284 -
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14,

15.

BORROWINGS (CONT’D)
The maturity of the borrowings as at year end are as follows:-

Group and Company

31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM
Within 1 year 1,156,553 1,270,464 -
After 1 year but not later than
5 years 10,784,361 7,465,032 -
Later than 5 years 11,352,969 3,116,788 -
22,137,330 10,581,820 -
23,293,883 11,852,284 -

The term loans are secured by:-

1) Debentures covering fixed and floating charges over the present and future
assets of the Group and of the Company;

(i)  First party second legal charge over the Group’s and the Company’s
property;

(iii)  Joint and several guarantee by a Director and ex-shareholders;

(iv)  Fixed deposits as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements;

(v) Personal guarantee by a Director; and

(vi)  Corporate guarantee by the holding company.

The effective interest rates of term loans of the Group and of the Company are
charged at rates ranging from 3.56% to 3.81% (31.3.2020: 4.31% to 4.81% and
1.4.2019: Nil) per annum.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group and the Company have leased for motor vehicles. Future minimum
lease payments as at financial year end is as follows:-

Group and Company

Restated Restated
31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM
Brought forward 143,286 25,902 57,481
Addition - 150,000 -
Accretion of interest 5,699 6,588 2,117
Payments (33,384) (39,204) (33,696)

- Carried forward 115,601 143,286 25,902
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15. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

Group and Company

Restated Restated
31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM
Represented by:-
Non-current 86,588 115,601 -
Current 29,013 27,685 25,902
115,601 143,286 25,902

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 28.2.2 to the financial
statemenits,

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:-

Group and Company

Restated
2021 2020
RM RM
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 50,592 67,395
Interest expense on lease liabilities 5,699 6,588
Short-term leases 538,540 499,360
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 594,831 573,343

The total cash outflows for leases of the Group and the Company amounted to
RMS571,924 (2020: RM538,564).

The effective interest rates of lease liabilities of the Group and of the Company are

charged at rates of 4.28% (31.3.2020: 3.03% to 4.28% and 1.4.2019: 3.03%) per
annum.
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16.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Group and Company

31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM
Brought forward 1,462,000 © 1,502,000 1,581,000
Recognised in profit or loss 898,000 (40,000) (79,000)
Carried forward 2,360,000 1,462,000 1,502,000

The balance in the deferred tax liabilities is made up of temporary differences arising from:-

Group and Company

Property,
plant and Right-of-use
equipment -assets Provisions Total
RM RM RM RM
At 1 April 2019 1,502,000 - - 1,502,000
Effect of adoption of
MFRS 16 {(4,000) 4,000 - -
At 1 April 2019,
restated 1,498,000 4,000 - 1,502,000
Recognised in profit
or loss (50,000) 10,000 - (40,000)
At 31 March 2020,
restated 1,448,000 14,000 - 1,462,000
Recognised in profit
or loss 1,309,000 (10,000) (401,000) 898,000
At 31 March 2021 2,757,000 4,000 (401,000) 2,360,000
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17.

18.

19.

20.

TRADE PAYABLES

Group and Company

The trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal credit terms granted by
the trade payables ranging from 30 days to 90 days (31.3.2020 and 1.4.2019: 30

days to 90 days).
OTHER PAYABLES
Group and Company
31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM
Non-trade payables 468,069 202,566 200,568
Accruals 3,628,408 1,791,193 1,726,384
Sales and services tax
payable 162,584 88,830 144,292

4,259,061 2,082,589 2,071,244

REVENUE

Revenue recognised at a point in time:
- Sales of trading goods

FINANCE INCOME

Interest income:

- Fixed deposits with a licensed bank

- Short-term deposit funds with licensed banks
- Bank balances
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Group and Company

2021 2020
RM RM
129,869,218 130,732,332
Group and Company
2021 2020
RM RM
10,029 9,083
- 2,906
150,044 196,274
160,073 209,163
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21.  FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses:
- Lease liabilities
- Term loans

- Bank overdraft

22.  PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Group and Company

2021 2020

RM RM
5,699 6,588
382,744 326,784
20,010 12,659
408,453 346,031

Profit before tax has been determined after charging/(crediting), amongst others

items, the following:-

Group

2021
RM

Charging:-

Auditors’
remuneration:

- Statutory audit

- Others

Directors’ fee

Depreciation of
property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-
of-use assets

Fair value adjustment
on other investments 2,382,981

Property, plant and
equipment written
off 3,830,398

Realised loss on
foreign exchange

50,000
8,000
255,000

2,597,899

50,592

263,228

Crediting:-

Dividend income:

- Quoted shares

Gain on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment

Realised gain on
foreign exchange -

(14,248)

(805,880)

Restated
2020
RM

35,000

240,000

1,991,986
67,395

65,439

4,526,448

(3,681)

(25,543)

(88,744)

Company

2021
RM

50,000
8,000
255,000

2,597,899
50,592

2,382,981

3,830,398

263,228

(14,248)

(805,880)

Restated
2020
RM

35,000

240,000

1,991,986
67,395

65,439

4,526,448

(3,681)

(25,543)

(88,744)
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23. TAXEXPENSE

Current tax:

- Current financial year

- Under/(Over)
provision in prior
financial yeats

Deferred tax:

- Origination and
reversed at temporary
differences

- (Over)/Under
recognised in prior
financial years

Group Company
Restated Restated
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM
4,317,000 4,772,000 4,317,000 4,772,000
1,628,798 (188,437) 1,628,798 (188,437)
5,945,798 4,583,563 5,945,798 4,583,563
1,100,000 (102,000) 1,100,000 (102,000)
(202,000} 62,000 (202,000) 62,000
898,000 (40,000) 898,000 (40,000)
6,843,798 4,543,563 6,843,798 4,543,563

Malaysian income tax is calculated at statutory tax rate of 24% (2020: 24%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the financial year.

The numerical reconciliations between the effective tax rate and the statutory tax rate
of the Group and of the Company are as follows:~

Profit before tax

Tax at Malaysian
statutory tax rate of
24% (2020: 24%)

Tax effects in respect
of:-

Expenses not deductible
for tax purposes

Under/(Over) provision
of tax expense in prior
financial years

Group Company
Restated Restated
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM
19,052,032 15,416,531 19,052,032 15,416,531

4,572,488 3,699,967 4,572,488 3,699,967
1,679,740 977,047 1,679,740 977,047
1,628,798 (188,437) 1,628,798 (188,437)
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23.

24.

TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)

The numerical reconciliations between the effective tax rate and the statutory tax rate

of the Group and of the Company are as follows (cont’d):-

Group
Restated
2020
RM

2021

RM

Tax effects in respect of
(cont’d):-

(Over)/Under
recognised of deferred
tax liabilities in ptrior
financial years

Reinvestment tax
allowance granted
during the financial
year

Income not subject to
tax (289,524)

(202,000) 62,000

(545,704) :

(7,014)

Company
Restated
2020
RM

2021
RM

(202,000) 62,000
(545,704) ;

(289,524) (7,014)

Total tax expense 6,343,798 4,543,563

6,843,798 4,543,563

DIVIDENDS

In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2021:-
First interim single tier dividend of 25 sen per ordinary
share, paid on 15 March 2021

In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2020:-
First interim single tier dividend of 32 sen per ordinary
share, paid on 13 March 2020

Second interim single tier dividend of 25 sen per
ordinary share, paid on 15 June 2020

Third interim single tier dividend of 25 sen per ordinary
share, paid on 15 September 2020

Fourth interim single tier dividend of 25 sen per ordinary
share, paid on 15 December 2020
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Group and Company

2021 2020
RM RM
1,500,000 -

- 1,900,000
1,500,000 -
1,500,000 ;
1,500,000 -
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24,

25.

DIVIDENDS (CONT’D)

In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2019:-
First interim single tier dividend of 33 sen per ordinary

share, paid on 10 July 2019

Second interim single tier dividend of 27 sen per
ordinary share, paid on 30 October 2019

Third interim single tier dividend of 25 sen per ordinary
share, paid on 16 December 2019

Group and Company

2021 2020
RM RM
- 2,000,000
- 1,600,000
- 1,500,000
6,000,000 7,000,000

The Directors do not recommend any final dividend payment for the current financial

year.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Staffs’ remuneration
Salaries, bonus and other emoluments
Defined contribution plans

Directors’ remuneration
Bonus
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Group and Company

2021 2020
RM RM
13,644,165 12,854,051
1,587,034 1,514,855
15,231,199 14,368,906

717,514 848,122
15,948,713 15,217,028
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26.

27.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Related party transactions

The significant related party transactions of the Group and of the Company are as
follows:-

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM
Dividend paid to
holding company 3,900,000 4,550,000 3,900,000 4,550,000

Dividend paid to a
shareholder 2,100,000 2,450,000 2,100,000 2,450,000

There is no related party balance during the financial year.

Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group and
of the Company either directly or indirectly and entity that provides key
management personnel services to the Group and the Company.

Key management includes all the Directors of the Company and its subsidiary and
certain members of senior management of the Group and of the Company.

Group and Company

2021 2020
RM RM
Directors’ remuneration 717,514 848,122
Key management personnel:-
Salaries, bonus and other emoluments 521,490 556,207
Defined contribution plans 67,662 71,364
Benefit-in-kind 10,225 8,800

599,377 636,371

1,316,891 1,484,493

CAPITAL COMMITMENT
Group and Company
31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM

Authorised and contracted for:
- Property, plant and equipment 366,863 429,312 -
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28.

28.1

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categories as

follows:-
(1) Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (“AC™);
and

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”}

Group and Company

31.3.2021

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Other investments

Cash and bank balances,
deposits and placements

Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables
Borrowings

31.3.2020, restated

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Other investments

Cash and bank balances,
deposits and placements

Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables
Borrowings

Carrying
amount AC FVTPL
RM RM RM
17,059,164 17,059,164 -
11,365,783 11,365,783 -
161,604 - 161,604
14,462,483 14,462,483 -
43,049,034 42,887,430 161,604
8,696,266 8,696,266 -
4,096,477 4,096,477 -
23,293,883 23,293,883 -
36,086,626 36,086,626 -
9,198,619 9,198,619 -
8,568,469 8,568,469 -
2,544,585 - 2,544,585
27,690,676 27,690,676 -
48,002,349 45,457,764 2,544,585
5,430,794 5,430,794 -
1,993,759 1,993,759 -
11,852,284 11,852,284 -
19,276,837 19,276,837 -
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28.

28.1

28.2

28.2.1

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Categories of financial instruments (cont’d)

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categories as follows

(cont’d):-
(i) Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (“AC”);
and

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Group and Company Carrying
(cont’d) amount AC FVTPL
RM RM RM
1.4.2019
Financial assets
Trade receivables 14,500,965 14,500,965 -
Other receivables 7,075,387 7,075,387 -
Other investments 2,610,024 - 2,610,024
Cash and bank balances,
deposits and placements 10,595,123 10,595,123 -
34,781,499 32,171,475 2,610,024
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 10,223,476 10,223,476 -
Other payables 1,926,952 1,926,952 -
12,150,428 12,150,428 -

Financial risk management

The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their
operations and the use of financial instruments. They have established policies and
procedures to ensure effective management of credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate
risk and foreign currency risk.

The following sections explain key risks faced by the Group and the Company and
their management. Financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and of the
Company are summarised in Note 3.8 to the financial statements.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group and the Company if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet their contractual
obligations. It is the Group’s and the Company’s policy to enter into financial
instrument with a diversity of creditworthy counterparties. The Group and the
Company do not expect to incur material credit losses of their financial assets or
other financial instruments.
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28.

28.2

28.2.1

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
Financial risk management (cont’d)
Credit risk (cont’d)

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic, industry and
geographical factors similarly affect the group of counterparties whose aggregate
credit exposure is significant in relation to the Group’s and the Company’s total
credit exposure. The Group’s and the Company’s transactions are entered into with
diverse creditworthy counterparties, thereby mitigate any significant concentration
of credit risk.

It is the Group’s and the Company’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. The Group and the
Company do not offer credit terms without the approval of the head of credit
control.

Maximum exposure of the Group and of the Company to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of financial assets recognised at reporting date summarised

below:-

Group and Company

Restated
31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM
Financial assets
Trade receivables 17,059,164 9,198,619 14,500,965
Other receivables 11,365,783 8,568,469 7,075,387
Cash and bank balances,
deposits and placements 14,462,483 27,690,676 10,595,123
42,887,430 45,457,764 32,171,475

Trade receivables and other receivables
Recognition and measurement of impairment loss

In managing credit risk of trade receivables, the Group and the Company manage
its debtors and takes appropriate actions (including but not limited to legal actions)
to recover long overdue balances. The Group’s and the Company’s debt recovery
process are as follows:-

(a) Above 90 days past due after credit term, the Group and the Company will
start to initiate a structured debt recovery process which is monitored by the
finance team; and

(b) The Group and the Company will commence a legal proceeding against the
customers who having dispute or does not adhere to the restructure of the
repayment scheme.
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28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

28.2 Financial risk management (cont’d)

28.2.1 Credit risk (cont’d)

Trade reccivables and other receivables (cont’d)

Recognition and measurement of impairment loss (cont’d)

The Group and the Company use a provision matrix to measure ECLs for all the past
due debts. Credit term which are past due more than 365 days and having dispute
with the trade receivables will be considered as credit impaired.

The Group and the Company assessed the risk of loss based on the following factors:-
(@) overall past trend payments of customers;

(b) financial performances of each individual customers; and

(c) gross domestic product growth rate, base lending rate, and unemployed rate.

None of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets are secured by collateral or
other credit enhancements.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure and ECLs on the

Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables:-

Gross
carrying Expected Net carrying
amount credit loss amount
RM RM RM
Group and Company
31.3.2021
Not past due 13,765,857 13,765,857
Past due 1 to 30 days 095,688 995,688
Past due 31 to 60 days 686,863 686,363
Past due 61 to 90 days 1,602,332 1,602,332
Past due more than 90 days 8,424 8,424
17,059,164 17,059,164
31.3.2020
Not past due 7,182,175 7,182,175
Past due 1 to 30 days 1,066,498 1,066,498
Past due 31 to 60 days 417,836 417,836
Past due 61 to 90 days 532,110 532,110
9,198,619 9,198,619
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28.

28.2

28.2.1

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Credit risk (cont’d)

Trade receivables and other receivables (cont’d)

Recognition and measurement of impairment loss (cont'd)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure and ECLs on the
Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables (cont’d):-

Gross
carrying Expected Net carrying
amount credit loss amount
RM RM RM
Group and Company
(cont’d)
1.4.2019
Not past due 12,975,557 - 12,975,557
Past due 1 to 30 days 564,491 - 564,491
Past due 31 to 60 days 766,106 - 766,106
Past due 61 to 90 days 194,811 - 194,811
14,500,965 - 14,500,965

The Group and the Company use three categories to reflect its credit risk and how the
loss allowance is determined for each of those categories for financial assets other
than trade receivables. A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s and
the Company’s expected credit loss model is as follows:-

Category

Definition of categories

Basis of
recognising
expected credit
loss

Performing

Underperforming

Non-performing

Receivables have a low risk of default and a
strong capacity to meet contractual cash
flows.

Receivables for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk due to actual or
expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant change
to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations.

Receivables which are credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows
have occurred.
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28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

28.2 Financial risk management (cont’d)

28.2.1 Credit risk (cont’d)

Trade receivables and other receivables (cont’d)
Recognition and measurement of impairment loss (cont’d)
Based on the above, loss allowance is derived as follows:-

(@) the likelihood that the debtor would not be able to repay during the contractual
period;

(i) the percentage of contractual cash flows that will not be collected if default
happens; and

(iii) the outstanding amount that is exposed to default risk.

Credit risk concentration

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group and the Company have no
significant concentration of credit risk with any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics, except below mentioned.

Group and Company

31,3.2021 31.3,2020 1.4.2019
RM % RM % RM %
Trade receivables
Malaysia
3 customers (31.3.2020: 3
customers and 1.4,2019: 2
customers) 13,871,629 31 7,578,560 82 11,830,007 82

The Group and the Company continuously monitor credit standing of customers and
other counterparties, identified either individually or by group, and incorporate this
information into its credit risk controls. Where available at reasonable cost, external
credit ratings and/or reports on customers and other counterparties are obtained and
used.

Cash and bank balances, deposits and placements

The credit risk for cash and bank balances, deposits and placements is considered
low, since the counterparties are reputable financial institutions with high quality
external credit ratings and have no history of default. Consequently, the Group and
the Company are of the view that the loss allowance is not material and hence, it is
not provided for.
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28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

28.2 Financial risk management (cont’d)

28.2.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Company will not be able to meet
their financial obligations as and when they fall due, due to shortage of funds.

In managing its exposures to liquidity risk that arises principally from their various
payables, borrowings and lease liabilities, the Group and the Company maintain a
level of cash and cash equivalents and bank facilities deemed adequate by the
management to ensure, as far as possible that they will have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due.

The Group and the Company aim at maintaining a balance of sufficient cash and
deposits and flexibility in funding by keeping diverse sources of committed and
uncommitted credit facilities from various banks.

The summary of the maturity profile based on the contractual undiscounted
repayment obligations is as follow:-

< Maturity ————»
Carrying Contractual Later than 5
amount cash flows  Within 1 vear 2 to 5 years years
RM RM RM RM RM
Group and
Company
31.3.2021
Trade payables 8,696,266 8,696,266 8,696,266 - -
Other payables 4,096,477 4,096,477 4,096,477 - -
Borrowings 23,293,883 27,952,735 1,593,012 13,659,858 12,699,869
Lease liabilities 115,601 125,145 33,384 91,761 -
36,202,227 40,870,627 14,419,138 13,751,619 12,699,869
31.3.2020
Trade payables 5,430,794 5,430,794 5,430,794 - -
Other payables 1,993,759 1,993,759 1,993,759 - -
Borrowings 11,852,284 29,472,520 1,519,781 11,791,047 16,161,692
Lease liabilities 143,286 158,529 33,384 125,145 -
19,420,123 37,055,602 8,977,718 11,916,192 16,161,692
1.4.2019
Trade payables 10,223,476 10,223,476 10,223,476 - -
Other payables 1,926,952 1,926,952 1,926,952 - -
Lease liabilifies 25,902 30,858 30,858 - -

12,176,330 12,181,286 12,181,286 - -

The above amounts reflect the contractual undiscounted cash flows, which may differ
from the carrying values of financial liabilities at the reporting date.

71



Registration No: 198901008551 (185853-K)

28.

28.2

28.2.3

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
Financial risk management (cont’d)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and
the Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.

The Group’s and the Company’s fixed rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of
change in their fair value due to changes in interest rates. The Group’s and the
Company’s variable rate borrowings are exposed to the risk of change in cash flows
due to changes in interest rates. Short-term receivables and payables are not
significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate management objective is to manage
interest expenses consistent with maintaining an acceptable level of exposure to
interest rate fluctuation, In order to achieve this objective, the Group and the
Company target a mix of fixed and floating debts based on assessment of its existing
exposure and desired interest rate profile.

The interest rate profile of the Group’s and the Company’s significant interest-
bearing financial instruments, based on carrying amounts as at the reporting date is as
follows:-

Group and Company

31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM
Fixed rate instruments
Financial asset
Deposits and placements 11,351,323 341,294 246,481
Financial liability
Lease liabilities (115,601) (143,286) (25,902)
11,235,722 198,008 220,579
Floating rate instrument
Financial liability
Term Joans (23,293,883) (11,852,284) -

Fair values sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group and the Company do not account for any fixed rate financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest
rates as at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.
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28.2

28.2.3

28.24

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Interest rate risk (cont’d)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of profit to a reasonably possible
change in interest rate of +/-50 (31.3.2020 and 1.4.2019; +/-50) basis points (“bp”).
These changes are considered to be reasonably possible based on observation of
current market conditions. The calculations are based on a change in the average
market interest rate for each period, and the financial instrument held at each
reporting date that is sensitive to changes in interest rate. All other variables are held
constant,

Impact on profit/equity
(Decrease)/Increase
+50bp -50bp
RM RM
At 31.3.2021 (116,469) 116,469

At31.3.2020 (59,261) 59,261
At 1.4.2019 -

Foreign currency risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of their
normal operating activities, where the currency denomination differs from the local
currency, Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”). The Group’s and the Company’s policy are to
keep the foreign exchange exposure to an acceptable level.

The Group and the Company are exposed to transactional currency risk primarily
through costs of sales that are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency to which they related. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily
United States Dollar (“USD”) and Singapore Dollar (“SGD”).

Foreign currency denominated financial assets which expose the Group and the
Company to currency risk are disclosed below. The amount shown is those reported
to key management translated into RM at the closing rate:-

Group and Company

31.3.2021 31.3.2020 1.4.2019
RM RM RM
Denominated in USD
Other receivables 10,721,856 7,751,308 6,884,141
Trade payables (3,655,021) (1,893,138)  (2,870,893)
7,066,835 5,858,170 4,013,248
Denominated in SGD
Trade payables (186,862) (157,111) (265,365)
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28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

28.2 Financial risk management (cont’d)

28.2.4 Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

28.3

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of profit/equity with regards to the
Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities and the RM/USD
and RM/SGD exchange rate assuming all other things being equal. A +/-1%
(31.3.2020 and 1.4.2019: 1%) change in the RM/USD and RM/SGD exchange rate at
the reporting is deemed possible. Both of these percentages have been determined
based on average market volatility in exchange rates in the previous 12 months.

The sensitivity analysis is based on the Group’s and the Company’s foreign currency
financial instruments held at each reporting date and also takes into account forward
exchange contracts that offset effects from changes in currency exchange rates. If the
RM had strengthened/weakened against the USD and SGD, then the impact would be
as follows:-

Group and Company

Impact on profit/equity
Increase/{Decrease
+1% -1%
RM RM
RM/USD
31.3.2021 70,668 (70,668)
31.3.2020 58,582 (58,582)
1.4.2019 40,132 (40,132)
RM/SGD
31.3.2021 (1,869) 1,869
31.3.2020 (1,571) 1,571
1.4.2019 (2,654) 2,654

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and of
the Company at the reporting date approximate their fair values due to their short-
term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market
interest rates on or near the reporting date or immaterial discounting impact.
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28.4

28.5

29.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which the fair value is observable:-

Group and Company
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RM RM RM RM

31.3.2021
Financial assets
Non-derivative financial
assets at FVTPL 161,603 - 1 161,604

31.3.2020
Financial assets
Non-derivative financial

assets at FVTPL 62,085 2,482,500 2,544,585

1.4.2019
Financial assets
Non-derivative financial
assets at FVTPL 127,524

2,482,500 2,610,024

There was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 in 31.3.2021, 31.3.2020 and
1.4.2019.

Net gain or losses arising from financial instruments

Group and Company
2021 2020
RM RM
Net loss on:-
Financial assets at FVTPL
- recognised in profit or loss 2,382,981 65,439
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Total capital managed at the Group’s and the Company’s level are the shareholders’
fund as shown in the statements of financial position.

The primary objective of the Group’s and the Company’s capital management are to

ensure that they maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratio in order to
support their business and maximise shareholders’ value.
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30.

30.1

30.1.1

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

The Group and the Company manage their capital structure and make adjustments to
it, in light of changes in economic conditions including the interest rate movements.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group and the Company may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
share capital.

No changes were made in the objective, policies or processes during the financial
year and prior financial years.

TRANSITION TO MFRSs FRAMEWORK

The Group and the Company adjusted amounts previously reported in the financial
statements that were prepared in accordance with the previous MPERS Framework
for the Group and the Company. In preparing the opening statements of financial
position at 1 April 2019 and the restated comparative information for the financial
year ended 31 March 2020, an explanation on the impact arising from the adoption of
MFRSs on the financial position and financial performance of the Group and of the
Company are set out as follows.

Explanation of transition to MFRSs

Reconciliation of statements of financial position

As
previously
reported Effect of
under transition to Prior year Restated under
MPERS MFRSs Reclassification  adjustments MFRSs
RM RM RM RM RM

Group
31.3.2020
Non-current assets
Property, plant and

equipment 19,111,323 {236,096) - - 18,875,227
Right-of-use assets - 236,096 - - 236,096
Intangible asset - - - 860,888 860,888
Current assets
Other receivables 8,653,299 - (84,830) - 8,568,469
Cash and bank

balances, deposits

and placements 27,605,846 - 84,830 - 27,690,676
Equity
Retained earnings 71,891,550 - - 860,888 72,752,438
1.4.2019

Non-current assets
Property, plant and

equipment 18,498,977 (50,531} - - 18,448,446
Right-of-use assets - 50,531 - 50,531
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30. TRANSITION TO MFRSs FRAMEWORK (CONT’D)
30.1 Explanation of transition to MFRSs (cont’d)
30.1.1 Reconciliation of statements of financial position (cont’d)
As
previously
reported Effect of
under transition to Prior year Restated under
MPERS MFRSs Reclassification  adjustments MFRSs
RM RM RM RM RM
Company
31.3.2020
Non-current assets
Property, plant and
equipment 19,111,323 (236,096} - - 18,875,227
Right-of-use assets - 236,096 - - 236,096
Intangible asset - - - 860,888 860,888
Current assefs
Other receivables 8,653,299 - (84,830) - 8,568,469
Cash and bank
balances, deposits .
and placements 27,605,846 - 84,830 - 27,690,676
Equity
Retained earnings 71,891,650 - - 860,888 72,752,538
1.4.2019
Non-current assets
Property, plant and
equipment 18,498,977 (50,331) - - 18,448 446
Right-of-use assets - 50,531 - - 50,531

30.1.2 Reconciliation of statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

As previously

reported under Prior year Restated under
MPERS Reclassifications _ adjustments MFRSs
RM RM RM RM

Group and Company
2020
Decrease in administration

expenses 11,899,850 (4,526,448) {860,888) 6,512,514
Increase in property, plant and

equipment written off - 4,526,448 - 4,526,448
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30.1

30.1.3

30.2

30.2.1

30.2.2

TRANSITION TO MFRSs FRAMEWORK (CONT’D)

Explanation of transition to MFRSs (cont’d)

Reconciliation of statements of cash flows
As previously Effect of
reported under transition to Prior year Restated under
MPERS MFRSs adjustments MFRSs
RM RM RM RM

Group and Company
2020
OPERATING

ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 14,555,643 - 860,888 15,416,531
Adjustments for:-
Depreciation of property,

plant, and equipment 2,059,381 (67,395) - 1,991,986
Depreciation of right-of-use

assets - 67,395 - 67,395
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of intangible asset - - (860,888) (860,888)
Purchase of property, plant

and equipment (7,366,851} 102,960 - (7,263,891)
Purchase of right-of-use

assets - (102,960) - {102,960}
CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS
Net changes 17,000,740 - 84,830 17,085,570

Notes to reconciliations
MFERS 9 Financial instruments

The classification and measurement requirements of MFRS 9 did not have a
significant impact to the Group and the Company. All financial assets previously held
at amortised cost continued to be measured by the Group and the Company at
amortised cost.

MFRS 9 introduces and expected credit loss model on impairment for all financial
assets that replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in MFRS 139. The
expected credit loss model is forward-looking and eliminates the need for a trigger
event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

MFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

MFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining how and when
revenue is recognised. Under MFRS 15, revenue is recognised when control of the
goods or services transfers to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group and the Company expect to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services.
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30.2

30.2.2

30.2.3

TRANSITION TO MFRSs FRAMEWORK (CONT’D)
Notes to reconciliations (cont’d)
MFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers (cont’d)

Revenue is recognised for these arrangements over time or at a point in time
depending on the Group’s and the Company’s evaluation of when the customer
obtains control of the promised products or services. The Group and the Company
have reviewed their performance obligations, customer contracts and evaluated the
impact of MFRS 15 based on the amount and timing of revenue recognition.

All revenue is recognised at a point in time, which is typically on delivery. An asset is
transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of the asset. All the contracts are
completed at the adoption date. The revenue is recognised net of any related rebates,
discounts and tax.

In conclusion, the adoption of MFRS 15 has no significant impact on the substance of
the principles applied by the Group and the Company to the amount and timing of
revenue recognition. The revenue recognition principles and delivery terms applied by
the Group and the Company remain generally unaltered. No adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings has been made as there are no changes in timing of the
revenue recognition.

MERS 16 Leases

MFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede MFRS 117 Leases, IC
Interpretation 4 Determine whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, IC
Interpretation 115 Operating Leases — Incentives and IC Interpretation 127 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

The Group and the Company adopted MFRS 16 with the date of initial application of
1 April 2019 by applying the retrospective transition method.

As a result of the adoption of MFRS 16, the existing requirements for a lessee to
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases under the MFRS 117 Leases
are no longer required. MFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under MFRS
16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use (“ROU”) asset representing its right
to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the ROU
asset and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the lease
liability into a principal portion and an interest portion and presents them in the
statements of cash flows.
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30.2

30.2.3

30.2.4

30.2.5

TRANSITION TO MFRSs FRAMEWORK (CONT’D)
Notes to reconciliations (cont’d)
MFRS 16 Leases (cont’d)

The ROU asset and the lease liability are initially measured on a present value basis.
The measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and also includes
payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
an option to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from the lessee accounting for leases
that are classified as operating leases under the predecessor standard, MFRS 117.

In respect of the lessor accounting, MFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in MFRS 117. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its
leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

For leases that were classified as finance lease under MFRS 117, the carrying amounts
of the ROU asset and the lease liability at 1 April 2019 are determined to be the same
as the carrying amount of the lease asset and lease liability under MFRS 117
immediately before that date.

Initial application of the MFRS 16 did not have material impact to the financial
statements, except for the motor vehicles held under finance lease arrangement with
net carrying amount of RM236,096 and RM50,531 as at 31 March 2020 and 1 April
2019 previously presented within property, plant and equipment is now presented
within the line item right-of-use assets respectively. There has been no change in the
amount recognised.

Prior year adjustments

The Group and the Company restated the intangible asset by RM860,888 as the Group
and the Company incurred such developments cost for the purchase of developing new
technology system for the expanding the business purposes.

Reclassification

The comparative figures for certain assets, liabilities, income and expenses have been
reclassified to conform to the presentation of the financial year ended 31 March 2021.
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31,

32.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

(2)

(b)

(©)

@

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared the Coronavirus
(“COVID-19") outbreak as a pandemic in recognition of its rapid spread across
the globe. On 16 March 2020, the Malaysian Government has imposed the
Movement Control Order (“MCO”) starting from 18 March 2020 to curb the
spread of the COVID-19 outbreak in Malaysia. The COVID-19 outbreak also
resulted in travel restriction, lockdown and other precautionary measures
imposed in various countries. The emergence of the COVID-19 outbreak since
early 2020 has brought significant economic uncertainties in Malaysia and
markets in which the Group and the Company operate.

The Group and the Company are significantly impacted by the COVID-19. As
such, the Group and the Company have implemented several measures fo
weather through this current challenging time. These efforts are on-going as the
Group and the Company continue to seek support from their vendors and
business partners to address their cash flow requirements. The following
measures had been taken, with further additional efforts to be taken:

Operation

The Group and the Company have temporarily shut down their premises from 18
March 2020 in alignment with the MCO Policy. The Group’s and the
Company’s operation resumed gradually from early April 2020 with proper
Standard Operating Procedures put in place and achieved full operation in early
May 2020. The disruption of its operations during the financial year due to MCO
and the relevant financial impact has been taken into account in the financial
results of the Group and of the Company.

The Malaysian Government has again imposed the MCO and Conditional
Movement Control Order (“CMCQ”) for selected states which are severely
affected by the COVID-19 pandemic on 11 January 2021. Besides, the Malaysia
King declared state of emergency for the country until 1 August 2021 to curb the
spread of COVID-19 on 12 January 2021.

The restrictions imposed have not, however, negatively impacted the Group’s
and the Company’s financial performance as the Group and the Company were
allowed to operate throughout the MCO/CMCO/FMCO, under guidelines set by
the National Security Council, Ministry of Health and Ministry of International
Trade and Industry respectively.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

On 28 May 2021, the Malaysian Government has announced the implementation
of FMCO (“Full MCO™), also known as total nationwide lockdown for a period
of 14 days from 1 June 2021, and subsequently extended to 28 June 2021.

As at date of authorisation of the financial statements, the COVID-19 pandemic
situation is still evolving and uncertain. The Group and the Company will
continue to actively monitor and manage their funds and operations to minimise
any impact arising from the COVID-19 pandemic.
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